SUPERNUS PHARMACEUTICALS INC Form 10-Q November 02, 2012 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2012

OR

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from

to

Commission File Number: 0-50440

SUPERNUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

1550 East Gude Drive, Rockville, MD (Address of principal executive offices)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

> **20850** (Zip Code)

20-2590184

(301) 838-2500

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. x Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). x Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definition of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer, and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Accelerated filer o

Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). o Yes x No

The number of outstanding shares of the registrant s common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, as of the close of business on October 31, 2012 was 24,530,358.

SUPERNUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

FORM 10-Q QUARTERLY REPORT

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION	1 age 110.
Item 1. Financial Statements	
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012 (Unaudited)	1
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2012 (Unaudited)	2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2012 (Unaddred)	2
• • • •	3
(Unaudited) Consolidated Statements of Cook Flows for the nine month periods and al Soutember 20, 2011 and 2012 (Unaudited)	5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2012 (Unaudited)	4
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	5
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	15
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	23
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	23
PART II OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	24
Item 1A. Risk Factors	24
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	24
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities	24
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures	24
Item 5. Other Information	24
Item 6. Exhibits	24
SIGNATURES	26
	20

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(in thousands, except share amounts)

	De	cember 31, 2011	September 30, 2012 (unaudited)
Assets			
Current assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	48,544	
Marketable securities			37,256
Marketable securities - restricted		245	275
Accounts Receivable		128	500
Inventory			26
Prepaid expenses and other		338	1,276
Deferred financing costs, current		144	144
Total current assets		49,399	62,889
Property and equipment, net		1,310	1,384
Purchased patents, net		912	740
Long Term Investments			1,804
Other assets		55	55
Deferred financing costs, long-term		2,054	142
Total assets	\$	53,730	\$ 67,014
Liabilities and stockholders equity			
Current liabilities:			
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$	10,078	\$ 10,485
Accrued compensation		1,547	1,801
Deferred revenue		232	576
Interest payable		138	238
Secured notes payable, net		6,775	11,490
Total current liabilities		18,770	24,590
Deferred revenue, net of current portion		465	381
Secured notes payable, net of current portion and discount		22,711	14,116
Other non-current liabilities		1,399	1,558
Supplemental executive retirement plan		245	275
Warrant liability		697	1,463
Total liabilities		44,287	42,383
Stockholders equity:			

Series A convertible preferred stock, \$0.001 par value - 49,625,000 shares and 65,000,000		
shares authorized at December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, respectively; 49,000,000		
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 and zero shares issued and outstanding		
as of September 30, 2012, respectively; aggregate liquidation preference of \$69,520 and zero		
at December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, respectively	49	
Common stock, \$0.001 par value - 62,625,000 shares and 130,000,000 shares authorized at		
December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, respectively; 1,662,321 and 24,466,049 shares		
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, respectively	2	24
Additional paid-in capital	49,362	97,378
Accumulated other comprehensive income	1	(29)
Accumulated deficit	(39,971)	(72,742)
Total stockholders equity	9,443	24,631
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 53,730 \$	67,014

See accompanying notes.

Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

	Three months ended September 30, 2011 2012					Nine months ended September 30, 2011 2012			
		(unau	dited)			udited)			
Revenues	\$	11	\$	91 \$	761	\$	391		
Costs and Expenses									
Research and development		8,425		8,306	23,126		18,367		
Selling, general and administrative		1,501		4,075	5,143		11,450		
Total costs and expenses		9,926		12,381	28,269		29,817		
Operating loss from continuing operations		(9,915)		(12,290)	(27,508)		(29,426)		
Other income (expense):				• •	• •		24		
Interest income		3		39	29		91		
Interest expense		(499)		(880)	(1,357)		(2,771)		
Other income (expense)		260		(351)	30		(665)		
Total other income (expense)		(236)		(1,192)	(1,298)		(3,345)		
Loss from continuing operations		(10,151)		(13,482)	(28,806)		(32,771)		
Discontinued operations:									
Income from discontinued operations		417			646				
Net loss	\$	(9,734)	\$	(13,482) \$	(28,160)	\$	(32,771)		
Cumulative dividends on Series A convertible									
preferred stock	\$	(858)	\$	\$	(2,573)	\$	(1,143)		
Net loss attributable to common stockholders	\$	(10,592)	\$	(13,482) \$	(30,733)	\$	(33,914)		
				× / / /					
Loss per common share:									
Basic and Diluted									
Continuing operations	\$	(6.90)	\$	(0.55) \$		\$	(2.36)		
Discontinued operations		0.26			0.40				
Net loss		(6.64)		(0.55)	(19.28)		(2.36)		
Weighted-average number of common shares:									
Basic and Diluted		1,595,821		24,464,281	1,594,288		14,356,546		

See accompanying notes.

Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(in thousands)

	Three months end 2011	ed Sept	ember 30, 2012	Nine months endo 2011	ed Septer	mber 30, 2012
	(unau	dited)		(unau	dited)	
Comprehensive loss:						
Net Loss	\$ (9,734)	\$	(13,482) \$	(28,160)	\$	(32,771)
Unrealized (losses) gains on marketable						
securities	(1)		(35)	2		(29)
Total comprehensive loss	\$ (9,735)	\$	(13,517) \$	(28,158)	\$	(32,800)

See accompanying notes.

Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

	Nine Months End 2011	ed Septe	mber 30, 2012
	2011 (unau	dited)	2012
Cash flows from operating activities		, i	
Net loss	\$ (28,160)	\$	(32,771)
Income from discontinued operations	(646)		
Loss from continuing operations	(28,806)		(32,771)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations to net cash used in operating activities:			
Gain on sale of property and equipment	(25)		
Change in fair value of warrant liability	(10)		766
Unrealized loss (gain) on marketable securities	1		(29)
Depreciation and amortization	651		650
Amortization of deferred financing costs	159		248
Stock-based compensation expense	(44)		235
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
Accounts Receivable	(516)		(372)
Inventory			(26)
Prepaid expenses and other assets	(137)		(938)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	(2,471)		660
Interest payable	138		101
Deferred revenue	439		259
Other non-current liabilities	553		158
Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations	(30,068)		(31,059)
Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations	2,141		
Net cash used in operating activities	(27,927)		(31,059)
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchases of marketable securities	(17,890)		(56,476)
Sales and maturities of marketable securities	26,855		17,416
Purchases of property and equipment, net	(494)		(553)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities from continuing operations	8,471		(39,613)
Net cash provided by investing activities from discontinued operations			
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	8,471		(39,613)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of underwriters discounts	1		52,447
Proceeds from issuance of (payments on) secured notes payable	15,000		(4,019)
Financing costs	(705)		(2,888)
Net cash provided by financing activities from continuing operations	14,296		45,540
Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued operations	(2,096)		,
Net cash provided by financing activities	12,200		45,540
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	(7,256)		(25,132)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	23,740		48,544
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 16,484	\$	23,412

Supplemental cash flow information:		
Cash paid for interest-Continuing operations	\$ 990	\$ 2,257
Cash paid for interest-Discontinued operations	\$ 9,044	\$
Noncash conversion of preferred stock to common stock	\$	\$ 49

See accompanying notes.

Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 and 2012 (unaudited)

1. Organization and Business

Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the Company) is a specialty pharmaceutical company focused on developing and commercializing products for the treatment of central nervous system diseases, including neurological and psychiatric disorders. The Company has two proprietary products and several proprietary product candidates in clinical development that address large market opportunities in epilepsy and attention deficit hyperactivity disorder. Trokendi XRTM (formerly known as SPN-538) received tentative approval from the Food and Drug Administration (the FDA) on June 25, 2012, and Oxtellar XRTM was approved by the FDA on October 19, 2012 (See footnote 8).

2. Management s Plans as to Continuing as a Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. Since inception, the Company has incurred, and continues to incur, significant losses from operations.

The Company s current operating assumptions, which reflect management s best estimate of future revenue and operating expenses, indicate that current cash on hand, including the proceeds received from the sale of common stock in May 2012, should be sufficient to fund operations as currently planned into the second quarter of 2013. As a result, the Company envisions that it will need to raise additional capital prior to this time so as to be able to continue its business operations as currently conducted and fund deficits in operating cash flows.

Although the Company intends to raise additional capital, there can be no assurance that any financing will be available to the Company at any given time or available on favorable terms. The type, timing and terms of financing selected by the Company will be dependent upon the Company s cash needs, the availability of financing sources and the prevailing conditions in the financial markets.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The Company s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Supernus Europe Ltd., and include the accounts of its wholly-owned subsidiary, TCD Royalty Sub, LLC (TCD) through December 14, 2011, the date that the Company sold all of its equity interests in TCD. The assets, liabilities, and results of operations related to TCD are presented as discontinued operations for all periods in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. These companies are collectively referred to herein as Supernus or the Company. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (U.S. GAAP) for interim financial information. In the opinion of management, the consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments necessary to fairly present the Company s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. These adjustments are of a normal recurring nature.

Certain notes and other information have been omitted from the interim consolidated financial statements presented in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Therefore, these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed as part of the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-171375) (the Registration Statement).

The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of the Company s future financial results.

Table of Contents

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires the Company to make estimates and judgments in certain circumstances that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made its best estimates and judgments of certain amounts included in the financial statements, giving due consideration to materiality. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, fair value of assets and common stock, income taxes, preclinical study and clinical trial accruals and other contingencies. Management bases its estimates on historical experience or on various other assumptions, including information received from its service providers, which it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all investments in highly liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of investments in U.S. Treasuries, various U.S. governmental agency debt securities, corporate bonds and other fixed income securities. Management classifies the Company s investments, both short-term and long-term, as available-for-sale. Long-term investments are those which have maturity dates greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date. Such securities are carried at estimated fair value, with any unrealized holding gains or losses reported, net of any tax effects reported, as accumulated other comprehensive income, which is a separate component of stockholders equity. Realized gains and losses, and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary, if any, are included in consolidated results of operations. A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-temporary results in a reduction in fair value, which is charged to earnings in that period, and a new cost basis for the security is established. Dividend and interest income is recognized as interest income when earned. The cost of securities sold is calculated using the specific identification method. The Company places all investments with highly rated financial institutions.

Marketable Securities Restricted

The Company has established the Supernus Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for the sole purpose of receiving funds for two executives from a previous SERP and providing a continuing deferral program under the Supernus SERP. As of December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, the estimated fair value of the mutual fund investment securities within the SERP of approximately \$245,000 and \$275,000 respectively, has been recorded as restricted marketable securities. A corresponding noncurrent liability is also included in the consolidated balance sheets to reflect the Company s obligation for the SERP. The Company has not made, and has no plans to make, contributions to the SERP. The securities can only be used for purposes of paying benefits under the SERP.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities. The counterparties are various corporations and financial institutions of high credit standing.

Substantially all of the Company s cash and cash equivalents are maintained with well known, U.S. and Non U.S. financial institutions and corporations. Deposits held with banks may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits. Generally, these deposits may be redeemed upon demand and, therefore, management believes they bear minimal risk. The Company has not experienced any other than temporary losses on its deposits of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted investments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued expenses, approximate fair value due to their short-term maturities.

The fair value of an asset or liability should represent the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Such transactions to sell an asset or transfer a liability are assumed to occur in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability. Accordingly, fair value is determined based on a

6			
U			

Table of Contents

hypothetical transaction at the measurement date, considered from the perspective of a market participant rather than from a reporting entity s perspective.

The Company reports assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value using a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

• Level 1 Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

• Level 2 Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (interest rates, yield curves, etc.) and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means (market corroborated inputs).

• Level 3 Unobservable inputs that reflect the Company s own assumptions, based on the best information available, including the Company s own data.

In accordance with the fair value hierarchy described above, the following tables show the fair value of the Company s financial assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value (in thousands):

	۲	ll Carrying Value at cember 31, 2011	Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1)	 ue Measurements at cember 31, 2011 Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)	
Assets:						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	48,544	\$ 48,544	\$	\$	
Marketable securities- restricted		245		245		
Total assets at fair value	\$	48,789	\$ 48,544	\$ 245	\$	
Liabilities:						
Warrant liability	\$	697	\$	\$	\$	697

		Fair Value Measurements at	
		September 30, 2012	
		(unaudited)	
		Significant	
Total Carrying	Quoted Prices	Other	Significant
Value at	in Active	Observable	Unobservable
September 30,	Markets	Inputs	Inputs
2012	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)

Assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 23,412 \$	23,412	\$ \$
Marketable securities	37,256		37,256
Marketable securities- restricted	275		275
Long Term Investments	1,804		1,804
Total assets at fair value	\$ 62,747 \$	23,412	\$ 39,335 \$
Liabilities:			
Warrant liability	\$ 1,463 \$		\$ \$ 1,463
-			

Table of Contents

The Company s Level 1 assets include money market funds, and U.S. Treasuries and government agency debt securities with quoted prices in active markets. At December 31, 2011, Level 2 assets include mutual funds in which the SERP assets are invested. At September 30, 2012 such assets include mutual funds in which the SERP assets are invested, commercial paper and corporate bonds and other fixed income securities. Level 2 securities are valued using third-party pricing sources that apply applicable inputs and other relevant data into their models to estimate fair value.

Level 3 liabilities include the fair market value of outstanding warrants to purchase Common Stock recorded as a derivative liability. Prior to the IPO on May 1, 2012, these warrants provided the right to purchase Series A Preferred Stock that were converted to the right to purchase common stock upon the completion of the IPO. At December 31, 2011, the fair value of the preferred stock warrant liability was calculated using a probability-weighted expected return model (PWERM). At September 30, 2012 the fair value of the common stock warrant liability was calculated using a Monte-Carlo simulation on a Black-Scholes lattice model with the following assumptions:

Exercise Price	\$4 - \$5 per share
Volatility	80%
Stock Price as of September 30, 2012	\$11.55 per share
Term	8.3 - 9.3 years
Dividend Yield	0.0%
Risk-Free Rate	1.4% - 1.5%

Significant changes to these assumptions would result in increases/decreases to the fair value of the outstanding warrants.

Changes in the fair value of the warrants are recognized in Other Income (Expense) on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The following table presents information about the Company s common stock warrant liability as of September 30, 2012:

	Se	ne Months Ended ptember 30, 2012 (in thousands) (unaudited)
Balance at December 31, 2011	\$	697
Changes in fair value of warrants included in other income (expense)		766
Balance at September 30, 2012	\$	1,463

Inventory

Inventories, which are recorded at the lower of cost or market, include materials, labor and other direct and indirect costs and are valued using the first-in, first-out method. The Company capitalizes inventories produced in preparation for commercial launches when the related product candidates are considered likely to receive regulatory approval and it is probable that the related costs will be recoverable through the commercial sale of the product.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Upon retirement or sale, the cost of assets disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to operations. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the following average useful lives.

Computer equipment	3 years
Software	3 years
Lab and office equipment	5 years
Furniture	7 years
Leasehold Improvements	Shorter of lease term or useful life
Manufacturing equipment	5 - 10 years

Table of Contents

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of purchased patents. Patents are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, which is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the patents, generally estimated to be ten years. The carrying value of the patents is assessed for impairment annually during the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently if impairment indicators exist.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs consist of financing syndication costs incurred by the Company in connection with the closing of the Company s notes payable as well as legal, accounting and other costs incurred in connection with preparing for the Company s IPO. The Company amortizes the deferred financing costs associated with its notes payable over the term of the related debt (i.e. 3.5-4.0 years) using the effective interest method. On May 1, 2012, concurrent with the closing of the IPO, the Company reclassified all previously deferred financing costs related to the IPO as a charge against the proceeds received.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets consist primarily of purchased patents and property and equipment. The Company assesses the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If indications of impairment exist, projected future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are compared to the carrying amount to determine whether the asset s value is recoverable. Evaluating for impairment requires judgment, including the estimation of future cash flows, future growth rates and profitability and the expected life over which cash flows will occur. Changes in the Company s business strategy or adverse changes in market conditions could impact impairment analyses and require the recognition of an impairment charge equal to the excess of the carrying value of the long-lived assets over its estimated fair value.

Preclinical Study and Clinical Trial Accruals and Deferred Advance Payments

The Company estimates preclinical study and clinical trial expenses based on the services performed pursuant to contracts with research institutions, investigators, and clinical research organizations that conduct these activities on its behalf. In recording service fees, the Company estimates the time period over which the related services will be performed and compares the level of effort expended through the end of each period to the cumulative expenses recorded and payments made for such services and, as appropriate, accrues additional service fees or defers any non-refundable advance payments until the related services are performed. If the actual timing of the performance of services or the level of effort varies from the estimate, the Company will adjust its accrual or deferred advance payment accordingly. If the Company later determines that it no longer expects the services associated with a nonrefundable advance payment to be rendered, the advance payment will be charged to expense in the period that such determination is made.

The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax reporting bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in its consolidated financial statements when it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions must initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and relevant facts. The Company s policy is to recognize any interest and penalties related to income taxes in income tax expense.

Revenue Recognition

The Company s revenues have been generated through collaboration and research and development agreements. These agreements include fees for development services provided to customers, payments for achievement of specified development, regulatory and sales milestones, and, to a lesser extent, upfront license payments, which comprise the Company s development and milestone revenue. The Company records any amounts received in advance of services performed as deferred revenue and recognizes the amount ratably over the period it is earned.

Table of Contents

Multiple Element Arrangements

For arrangements entered into with multiple elements, the Company evaluates whether the components of each arrangement are separate elements based on certain criteria. Accordingly, revenues from collaboration agreements are recognized based on the performance requirements of the agreements. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the fee is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably assured.

Non-refundable license fees are recognized as revenue when the Company has a contractual right to receive such payment, the contract price is fixed or determinable, the collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured, and the Company has no further significant performance obligations in exchange for the license.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company accounts for its multiple element arrangements pursuant to Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 605-25, *Revenue Recognition Multiple-Element Arrangements*. ASC 605-25 establishes a selling-price hierarchy for determining the selling price of each element within a multiple-deliverable arrangement. Specifically, the selling price assigned to each deliverable is to be based on vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOE) if available; third-party evidence, if VSOE is unavailable; and estimated selling prices if neither VSOE or third-party evidence is available.

Milestone Payments

Milestone payments have been recognized as revenue when the collaborative partner acknowledges completion of the milestone and substantive effort was necessary to achieve the milestone. The Company accounts for milestone payments pursuant to the guidance in ASC 605-28, *Revenue Recognition Milestone Method.* Under this guidance, management may recognize revenue contingent upon the achievement of a milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved only if the milestone meets all the criteria within the guidance to be considered substantive. Substantive milestone payments are recognized upon achievement of the milestone only if all of the following conditions are met:

• the milestone payments are non-refundable;

• achievement of the milestone involves a degree of risk and was not reasonably assured at the inception of the arrangement;

• substantive effort on the Company s part is involved in achieving the milestone;

• the amount of the milestone payment is reasonable in relation to the effort expended or the risk associated with achievement of the milestone; and

• a reasonable amount of time passes between the up-front license payment and the first milestone payment as well as between each subsequent milestone payment.

Determination as to whether a payment meets the aforementioned conditions involves management s judgment. If any of these conditions are not met, the resulting payment would not be considered a substantive milestone, and therefore the resulting payment would be considered part of the overall consideration for the work being performed. Accordingly, revenue would be recognized over the anticipated life of the agreement.

The Company s milestone revenues were approximately \$0 and \$750,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and \$0 and \$150,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs primarily consist of employee-related expenses, including salaries and benefits; expenses incurred under agreements with contract research organizations, investigative sites, and consultants that conduct the Company s clinical trials; the cost of acquiring and manufacturing clinical trial materials; the cost of manufacturing materials used in process validation, to the extent that those materials are manufactured prior to receiving regulatory approval for those products, facilities costs that do not have an alternative future use; related depreciation and other allocated expenses; license fees for and milestone payments related to in-licensed products and technologies; stock-based compensation expense; and costs associated with non-clinical activities and regulatory approvals.

Stock-Based Compensation

Employee stock-based compensation is measured based on the estimated fair value on the grant date. The grant date fair value is calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which requires the use of subjective assumptions including volatility, expected term, risk-free rate, and the fair value of the underlying common stock. For awards that vest based on service conditions, the Company recognizes expense using the straight-line method less estimated forfeitures. The Company has awarded non-vested stock. Subsequent to its IPO, the fair value of the Company s common stock is based on observable market prices. The Company recognizes the estimated fair value of stock options on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period as the awards vest, and the estimated fair value of compensation expense associated with ESPP awards over the contribution period.

For stock option grants and non-vested stock subject to performance-based milestone vesting, the Company records the expense over the remaining service period when management determines that achievement of the milestone is probable. Management evaluates when the achievement of a performance-based milestone is probable based on the relative satisfaction of the performance conditions as of the applicable reporting date.

The Company records the expense for stock option grants to non-employees based on the estimated fair value of the stock option using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of non-employee awards is remeasured at each reporting period. As a result, stock compensation expense for non-employee awards with vesting is affected by changes in the fair value of the Company s common stock.

Warrant Liability

In January 2011, the Company entered into a secured credit facility pursuant to a loan and security agreement with certain lenders, which was subsequently amended in December 2011, providing for term loans of up to an aggregate of \$30.0 million. In connection with the drawdown of \$15.0 million under the secured credit facility on January 26, 2011, the Company issued to its lenders warrants to purchase an aggregate of 375,000 shares of the Company s Series A Preferred Stock at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. The warrants became exercisable immediately and expire on January 26, 2021. Upon completion of the Company s initial public offering on May 1, 2012, the lender warrants converted into warrants to purchase 93,750 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$4.00 per share. These warrants are recorded as a derivative liability and, as such, the Company reflects the warrant liability at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of this derivative liability is remeasured at the end of every reporting period and the change in fair value is reported in the consolidated statements of operations as other income (expense). As of December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, the fair value was estimated to be approximately \$460,000 and \$937,000, respectively. The change in fair value of approximately \$477,000 has been recorded in other income (expense) in the Company s consolidated statements of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

In connection with the drawdown of the second \$15.0 million under the secured credit facility on December 30, 2011, the Company issued to its lenders warrants to purchase an aggregate of 200,000 shares of the Company s Series A Preferred Stock at an exercise price of \$1.50 per share. The warrants became exercisable immediately and expire on December 30, 2021. Upon completion of the Company s initial public offering on May 1, 2012, the warrants converted into warrants to purchase 49,999 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$5.00 per share. These warrants are recorded as a derivative liability and, as such, the Company reflects the warrant liability at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of this derivative liability is remeasured at the end of every reporting period and the change in fair value is reported in the consolidated statements of operations as other income (expense). As of December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012, the fair value was estimated to be approximately \$237,000 and \$526,000, respectively. The change in fair value of approximately \$289,000 has been recorded in other income (expense) in the Company s consolidated statements of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

The terms of the warrant agreements provide for down-round anti-dilution adjustment for the warrants in certain situations whereby the Company sells or issues (a) shares at a price per share less than the exercise price of the warrants, or (b) equity-linked financial instruments with strike prices less than the exercise price of the warrants. As a result of this down round provision, the warrants continue to be classified as derivative liability.

Prior to completion of the Company s IPO, the fair value of the preferred stock warrants was estimated in accordance with the guidance outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Aid, *Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation* (the Technical Practice Aid). Several objective and subjective factors were considered when valuing each equity security and related warrant at a valuation date. The Company utilized the probability weighted expected return method, PWERM, to estimate the fair value of the preferred stock warrants. Under the PWERM, the value of each equity security and warrant was estimated based upon an analysis of future values for the entire equity instrument assuming various future outcomes. Share value was based upon the probability-weighted present value of the expected outcomes, as well as the rights of each class of preferred and common stock. A probability was estimated for each possible event based on the facts and circumstances as of the valuation date.

Table of Contents

Subsequent to the completion of the Company s IPO, which occurred on May 1, 2012, the fair value of the common stock warrants is determined using a Black-Scholes model within a Monte-Carlo framework. The Monte-Carlo simulation is a generally accepted statistical method used to estimate fair value based on the application of subjective assumptions, consistently applied for each period, including the probability, timing and magnitude of our issuance of additional common stock in future financings. This valuation is computed at the end of each fiscal quarter to reflect conditions at each valuation date until the warrants are exercised or they expire. In addition to assumptions regarding future equity financings, consideration is also given to the current stock price, anticipated stock volatility going forward, and the anti-dilution provisions embedded in the warrant agreements. In October 2012, 101,667 of these warrants were exercised (See Footnote 8).

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per common share is determined by dividing loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, without consideration of common stock equivalents. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the earnings attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common share equivalents outstanding for the period. The treasury stock method is used to determine the dilutive effect of the Company s stock option grants, warrants and potential employee stock purchase plans (ESPP) and the if-converted method is used to determine the dilutive effect of the Company s Series A Preferred Stock. The weighted-average shares used to calculate both basic and diluted loss per share are the same. The following common stock equivalents were excluded in the calculation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive:

	Three months ende	ed September 30,	Nine months ended September 30,		
	2011	2012	2011	2012	
Series A Preferred Stock	12,249,998		12,249,998	5,409,671	
Warrants Outstanding	20,364	91,184	26,227	71,662	
Stock Options, Non-vested Stock Options and ESPP					
awards	404,856	346,783	429,442	290,029	

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

	December 31, 2011	September 30, 2012 (unaudited)
Computer equipment	\$ 586	\$ 604
Software	209	209
Lab equipment and furniture	3,465	3,707
Leasehold improvements	1,486	1,778
	5,746	6,298
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization	(4,436)	(4,914)
	\$ 1,310	\$ 1,384

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was \$167,000 and \$479,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and \$154,000 and \$478,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively.

Table of Contents

5. Purchased Patents

The Company acquired certain patents in 2005. The following sets forth the gross carrying amount and related accumulated amortization of the patents (in thousands):

		December 31, 2011				September 30, 2012 (unaudited)			
	Weighted- Average Life	Gross Car Amou	. 0		umulated ortization (in tho		ss Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization	
Purchased Patents	10.0	\$	2,292	\$	1,380	\$	2,292	1,552	

Amortization expense was approximately \$57,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2012 and was approximately \$172,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2012. The net book value of intangible assets as of December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012 was approximately \$0.9 million and \$0.7 million, respectively.

6. Notes Payable

Secured Notes Payable

In January 2011, the Company entered into a secured credit facility pursuant to a loan and security agreement with certain lenders, which was subsequently amended in December 2011, providing for term loans of up to an aggregate of \$30.0 million. On January 26, 2011 and December 30, 2011, the Company drew down \$15.0 million and \$15.0 million, respectively, of term loans under this secured credit facility. The term loans bear interest at a fixed rate per annum of 11.0% and will mature on August 1, 2014 and January 1, 2015, respectively. The Company is required to make twelve months of interest only payments, beginning in March 2011, and six months of interest only payments, beginning in February 2012, respectively, and thereafter, principal and interest payments will be made over the remaining term of the loans.

The Company may voluntarily prepay all, but not less than all, outstanding term loans under its secured credit facility at any time, subject to the payment of a premium. With respect to any prepayment, the premium is 5.0%, if such prepayment is made before the amortization date (i.e. to reduce a debt by making payments against the principal balance in installments or regular transfers), 2.0% if such prepayment is made during the 15-month period after the amortization date, and 1.0%, if such prepayment is made thereafter. Upon the maturity of any outstanding term loans or the acceleration or prepayment thereof, the Company will also be required to make a final payment equal to 2.5% of the aggregate principal amount, or \$750,000, of the term loans borrowed under the secured credit facility. This final payment is being recorded as additional interest expense over the term of the loans.

The Company capitalized financing costs of approximately \$498,000 in issuing the secured notes payable, which are being amortized to interest expense over the term of the debt. The balance of deferred financing costs was approximately \$378,000 and \$270,000 at December 31, 2011 and

September 30, 2012, respectively. The carrying value of the secured notes payable at December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2012 includes debt discount of \$514,000 and \$374,000, respectively, related to the estimated fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the notes. The Company recorded interest expense related to the secured notes payable of approximately \$412,500 and \$739,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2012, and \$1,127,500 and \$2,358,000 for the nine months ending September 30, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

All obligations under the secured credit facility are secured by substantially all of the Company s existing property and assets (excluding its intellectual property) and subject to certain exceptions, by a pledge of the capital stock of the Company s U.K. subsidiary and any future subsidiary.

7. Collaboration Agreement

In August 2012, the Company executed a Development and Licensing Agreement (Stendhal License Agreement) with Especificos Stendhal, S.A., DE C.V. (Stendhal) that provided Stendhal with an exclusive license of the Company s intellectual property underlying the Trokendi XR product in the defined territory. The license included the right to the Company s patents, proprietary information, and know-how of the Company s drug-delivery technology and pharmaceutical product underlying its Trokendi XR product. Stendhal is responsible for all costs associated with clinical development, approval, commercialization and distribution of the product in the defined territory, which may be expanded upon certain events. The Company will receive \$1.8

Table of Contents

million of deferred revenue that will be recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over its substantive obligation period of twelve years. As of September 30, 2012 \$0.5 million of this amount has been recorded as deferred revenue. The Company monitors this estimate on a quarterly basis to determine if facts and circumstances may have changed that would require a prospective adjustment to the recognition period. The Company may receive up to \$1.8 million in future milestone payments, based on certain milestones defined in the Stendhal License Agreement.

8. Subsequent Event

On October 5, 2012, the Company received notification that one of the venture debt holders was exercising their warrants. A total of 101,667 warrants were exercised using the net share method. Accordingly, the Company issued 64,309 shares of common stock to the venture debt holder.

On October 19, 2012, the Company received approval from the Food & Drug Administration (the FDA) for Oxtellar XRT(MOxtellar XR), a novel once-daily extended release formulation of oxcarbazepine (formerly known as SPN-804).

On October 30, 2012 the Company received notification that the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office issued two patents covering Trokendi XR.

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is intended to help the reader understand the results of operations and financial condition of the Company. The interim financial statements included in this report and this Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2011, and the related Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, both of which are contained in our Registration Statement on Form S-I/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30, 2012 (File No. 333-171375) (the Registration Statement). In addition to historical information, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which are intended to be covered by the safe harbors created thereby. These forward-looking statements may include declarations regarding the Company s belief or current expectations of management, such as statements including the words budgeted, anticipate, project, estimate, expect, may, believe, potential, and similar statements or expressions are intended to be among the statements that are forward-looking statements. As such statements reflect the reality of risk and uncertainty that is inherent in the Company s business, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are made as of the date this report was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our actual results and the timing of events could differ materially from those discussed in our forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those set forth under the Risk Factors section of the Registration Statement and elsewhere in this report as well as in other reports and documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Solely for convenience, the trade names in this Form 10-Q are referred to without the TM symbols, but such references should not be construed as any indicator that the Company will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our rights thereto.

Overview

We are a specialty pharmaceutical company focused on developing and commercializing products for the treatment of central nervous system, or CNS, diseases. Our extensive experience in product development has been built over the past 20 years: initially as a standalone development organization, then as a U.S. subsidiary of Shire plc and, upon our acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Shire Laboratories Inc. in late 2005, as Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. We are developing several product candidates in neurology and psychiatry to address large market opportunities in epilepsy and attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, or ADHD, including ADHD patients with impulsive aggression.

Our two epilepsy products are Trokendi XR, formerly known as SPN-538 (extended release topiramate), for which the Food and Drug Administration (the FDA) granted tentative approval on June 25, 2012, and Oxtellar XR (extended release oxcarbazepine) for which we have received approval from the FDA on October 19, 2012. The final approval for Trokendi XR may not be made effective until the period of marketing exclusivity protection associated with safety information regarding a specific pediatric population expires on June 22, 2013. We are not required to complete any additional clinical trials for Trokendi XR. We anticipate the commercial launch of Oxtellar XR to occur during the first quarter of 2013 and the commercial launch of Trokendi XR to occur during the third quarter of 2013 assuming the receipt of final approval by the FDA.

We are also developing treatments for new indications in diseases such as ADHD and its coexisting disorders. We are developing SPN-810 (molindone hydrochloride), which is currently in a Phase IIb trial, as a novel treatment for impulsive aggression in patients who are being treated for ADHD, and are well controlled for ADHD on their existing medications. This trial is fully recruited with 121 patients. If approved by the FDA, SPN-810 could be the first product available to address this serious, unmet medical need. SPN-810 is based on molindone hydrochloride, which was previously marketed in the United States as an anti-psychotic to treat schizophrenia under the trade name Moban. In addition, SPN-812, which completed a Phase IIa trial, is being developed as a novel non-stimulant treatment for ADHD. SPN-812 is a selective norepinephrine reuptake inhibitor that we believe could be more effective and have a better side effect profile than other non-stimulant treatments for ADHD. In addition, because the active ingredient of SPN-812 has demonstrated efficacy as an antidepressant in Europe, this product candidate, if studied in that specific patient population and shown to be effective, may provide increased benefit to an estimated 40% of ADHD patients who suffer from depression.

In addition to these lead products and product candidates, we have a number of other product candidates in various stages of development such as SPN-809, which would represent a novel mechanism of action for the U.S. antidepressant market.

We intend to market our product candidates in the United States through our focused sales force targeting specialty physicians, including neurologists and psychiatrists. We believe our broad and diversified portfolio of product candidates provides us with multiple opportunities to achieve our goal of becoming a leading specialty pharmaceutical company focused on CNS diseases. We use our proprietary technologies to enhance the therapeutic benefits of approved anti-epileptic drugs, or AEDs through advanced

Table of Contents

extended release formulations. Our technologies have led to the tentative approval of Trokendi XR and approval of Oxtellar XR during 2012, both of which are novel oral once-daily extended release formulations of topiramate and oxcarbazepine, respectively, for the treatment of epilepsy. Immediate release formulations of topiramate and oxcarbazepine are available in generic form and are marketed under the brand names of Topamax and Trileptal, respectively. According to IMS Health, peak sales of Topamax and Trileptal represented an estimated 25.8% and 8.1% of the total seizure disorder market in 2008 and 2006, respectively. We believe there is a significant unmet need for extended release products, such as Trokendi XR and Oxtellar XR, for the treatment of epilepsy. Extended release products have been shown to improve compliance, increase seizure control, reduce side effects and improve tolerability as compared to immediate release products.

Historically, our revenues have been generated through research and development agreements, which included fees for development services provided to customers and payments for achievement of specified development, regulatory and sales milestones, as well as royalties on product sales of licensed products, Oracea, Sanctura XR, and Intuniv. Since our inception in 2005, we have generated no revenue from product sales and have incurred significant operating losses. As of September 30, 2012, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately \$72.7 million and a total stockholders equity of approximately \$24.6 million. We expect to incur net losses and negative cash flow from operating activities for the foreseeable future as we continue to develop our product candidates and seek marketing approval and, subject to obtaining such approval, the eventual commercialization of Trokendi XR and Oxtellar XR, as well as our other product candidates.

Critical Accounting Policies and the Use of Estimates

A critical accounting policy is one that is both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and that requires management s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. Such judgments are often the result of a need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States applicable to interim financial reporting requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

There were no significant changes in critical accounting policies from those at December 31, 2011. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we consistently applied the critical accounting policies discussed in the Registration Statement, which contained our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011. For a complete discussion regarding these critical accounting policies, refer to the Registration Statement.

Inventories, which are recorded at the lower of cost or market, include materials, labor and other direct and indirect costs and are valued using the first-in, first-out method. The Company capitalizes inventories produced in preparation for commercial launches when the related product candidates are considered likely to receive regulatory approval and it is probable that the related costs will be recoverable through the commercialization of the product. Following the receipt of tentative approval for Trokendi XR from the FDA on June 25, 2012, the Company began capitalizing validation batch manufacturing costs, to the extent that those validation lots are expected to be sold commercially after the product launch.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2012

	2011	Septe (una	onths Endo ember 30, audited) ausands)	ed 2012	Increase/ (decrease)
Revenues	\$	11	\$	91	80
Operating Expenses					
Research and development		8,425		8,306	(119)
Selling, general and administrative		1,501		4,075	2,574
Total operating expenses		9,926		12,381	
Operating loss from continuing operations		(9,915)		(12,290)	
Interest income and other income (expense), net		263		(312)	(575)
Interest expense		(499)		(880)	381
Total other income (expense)		(236)		(1,192)	
Loss from continuing operations	\$	(10,151)	\$	(13,482)	
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax		417			(417)
Net Loss	\$	(9,734)	\$	(13,482)	

Revenues

During the three month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2012, we recognized revenues related to licensing fees from our partners. Following the anticipated launches of Oxtellar XR and Trokendi XR in 2013, we expect to recognize revenue from commercial sales.

Our revenues were approximately \$91,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$11,000 for the same period in 2011, representing an increase of \$80,000. This increase was principally attributable to agreements to license Trokendi XR and Oxtellar XR outside of the United States of America.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred in connection with the development of our and our collaborators product candidates. These expenses consist primarily of:

• employee-related expenses, which include salaries and benefits;

• expenses incurred under agreements with contract research organizations, investigative sites and consultants that conduct our clinical trials and a substantial portion of our preclinical studies;

- the cost of acquiring and manufacturing clinical trial materials;
- the cost of manufacturing validation batches, if these materials are manufactured prior to obtaining regulatory approval;
- costs related to facilities, depreciation and other allocated expenses;
- license fees for, and milestone payments related to, in-licensed products and technology;
- stock-based compensation expense to employees and consultants engaged in research and development activities; and
- costs associated with non-clinical activities and regulatory approvals.

Table of Contents

For the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2012, we incurred research and development expenses related to the following products:

	Thr 201			ember 30, 2012
Trokendi XR	\$	3,767	\$	1,451
Oxtellar XR		1,373		2,201
SPN-810		1,461		1,711
SPN-812 and SPN-809		146		1,011
Development expenses - general		1,678		1,932
Total research and development expenses	\$	8,425	\$	8,306

Our research and development expenses were \$8.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012, compared to \$8.4 million for the same period in 2011, a decrease of \$0.1 million or 1%. This decrease is attributable to lower clinical trial costs for Trokendi XR of approximately \$2.3 million, partially offset by additional costs incurred primarily for validation batches for Oxtellar XR and an increase in costs for the clinical trials of SPN-810.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense. Our selling, general and administrative expenses were \$4.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$1.5 million for the same period in 2011, representing an increase of approximately \$2.6 million or approximately 171%. This increase is mainly due to an increase in sales and marketing costs associated with preparing for launches of Oxtellar XR and Trokendi XR, which are now expected during the first and third quarters of 2013, respectively.

Interest Income and Other Income (Expense), Net. Interest income and other income (expense), net was \$0.3 million income for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and \$0.3 million expense for the three months ended September 30, 2011. The decrease is primarily the result of foreign currency fluctuations and an increase in marketable securities.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was approximately \$ 0.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$0.5 million for the same period in 2011. This increase is primarily due to the drawdown of the second \$15.0 million under our secured credit facility in December 2011.

Loss from continuing operations. Loss from continuing operations was \$13.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to a loss of \$10.2 million for the same period in 2011. This increase was primarily due to the increase in sales and marketing costs.

Income from discontinued operations. Income from discontinued operations was \$0.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011. There were no activities related to discontinued operations in 2012 as we sold our membership interests in TCD Royalty Sub, LLC in December 2011.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2012

	2011	Septen (unau	nths Ended nber 30, ndited) usands)	2012	Increase/ (decrease)
Revenues	\$	761	\$	391	(370)
Operating Expenses	2	2 106		19 267	(4.750)
Research and development Selling, general and administrative		3,126 5,143		18,367 11,450	(4,759) 6,307
Total operating expenses		8,269		29,817	- ,
Operating loss from continuing operations	(2	7,508)		(29,426)	
Interest income and other income (expense), net		59		(574)	(633)
Interest expense	(1,357)		(2,771)	1,414
Total other income (expense)	(1,298)		(3,345)	
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (2	8,806)	\$	(32,771)	
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax		646			(646)
Net Loss	\$ (2	8,160)	\$	(32,771)	

Revenues

During the nine month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2012, we recognized revenues related to licensing fees and milestone payments associated with our licensing agreements. Following the anticipated launches of Oxtellar XR and Trokendi XR in 2013, we expect to recognize revenue from commercial sales.

Our revenues were approximately \$0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$0.8 million for the same period in 2011, representing a decrease of \$0.4 million. This decrease was principally attributable to a one-time milestone payment of \$0.8 million received in 2011 under our license agreement with United Therapeutics offset by recognition of revenue under our agreements with Stendhal in 2012.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred in connection with the development of our and our collaborators product candidates. These expenses consist primarily of:

• employee-related expenses, which include salaries and benefits;

• expenses incurred under agreements with contract research organizations, investigative sites and consultants that conduct our clinical trials and a substantial portion of our preclinical studies;

- the cost of acquiring and manufacturing clinical trial materials;
- the cost of manufacturing validation batches, if these materials are manufactured prior to obtaining regulatory approval;
- costs related to facilities, depreciation and other allocated expenses;
- license fees for, and milestone payments related to, in-licensed products and technology;
- stock-based compensation expense to employees and consultants engaged in research and development activities; and
- costs associated with non-clinical activities and regulatory approvals.

Table of Contents

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2012, we incurred research and development expenses related to the following products:

	Nine Months Ended Septemb 2011 (unaudited) (in thousands)		mber 30, 2012
Trokendi XR	\$ 5,675	\$	3,205
Oxtellar XR	8,475		3,458
SPN-810	2,919		3,970
SPN-812 and SPN-809	623		1,461
Development expenses - general	5,434		6,273
Total research and development expenses	\$ 23,126	\$	18,367

Our research and development expenses were \$18.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to \$23.1 million for the same period in 2011, a decrease of \$4.7 million or 21%. This decrease was attributable to a decrease in clinical trial costs for Oxtellar XR of approximately \$5.0 million as the Phase III trial for Oxtellar XR was substantially completed by the first quarter of 2012. This decrease was partially offset by increases in clinical trial costs for SPN-810 and general expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense. Our selling, general and administrative expenses were \$11.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$5.1 million for the same period in 2011, representing an increase of approximately \$6.4 million or approximately 123%. This increase is mainly due to an increase in sales and marketing costs associated with preparing for launches of Oxtellar XR and Trokendi XR which are now expected to occur during the first and third quarters of 2013, respectively.

Interest Income and Other Income (Expense), Net. Interest income and other income (expense), net was approximately \$0.6 million expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$0.1 million for the same period in 2011, representing an decrease of \$0.7 million. The decrease is primarily the result of an increase in warrant income valuations during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 offset by fluctuations in foreign currency rates.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was approximately \$2.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to \$1.4 million for the same period in 2011. This increase is primarily due to the drawdown of the second \$15.0 million under our secured credit facility in December 2011.

Loss from continuing operations. Loss from continuing operations was \$32.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to a loss of \$28.8 million for the same period in 2011. This increase is primarily due to the increase in sales and marketing costs offset by the decrease in clinical trial costs.

Income from discontinued operations. Income from discontinued operations was \$0.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011. There were no activities related to discontinued operations in 2012 as we sold our membership interests in TCD Royalty Sub, LLC in December 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities at September 30, 2012 were \$23.4 million, a decrease of \$25.1 million from \$48.5 million at December 31, 2011. This decrease is primarily due to continued losses from operations as we build towards two product launches in 2013, offset by the proceeds received from the IPO in May 2012. Although it is difficult to predict future liquidity requirements, we believe that the net proceeds from our IPO, together with our existing unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, and anticipated future product revenues, should be sufficient to fund operations as currently planned into the second quarter of 2013. Successful transition to profitability is dependent upon achieving a level of revenues adequate to support our cost structure, which we do not expect in the near term, if at all. We cannot assure you that we will ever be profitable or generate positive cash flow from operating activities.

Table of Contents

As of September 30, 2012 we had drawn down \$30.0 million of term loans. Our expected principal repayments over the next four years are (in thousands):

YEAR	Pri	ncipal
2012	\$	2,756
2013		11,809
2014		10,847
2015		569
Total	\$	25,981

We expect to continue to incur substantial additional operating losses for the foreseeable future as we continue to develop our product candidates and seek marketing approval and, subject to obtaining such approval, the eventual commercialization of Trokendi XR, Oxtellar XR and our other product candidates. With the marketing approval of Oxtellar XR, and if we obtain marketing approval for Trokendi XR, we will incur significant sales, marketing and outsourced manufacturing expenses. In addition, we expect to incur additional expenses to add operational, financial and information systems and personnel to support our planned product commercialization efforts.

Our anticipated cash burn for calendar year 2012 is in the range of \$55 million to \$60 million. Our future use of operating cash and capital requirements will depend on many forward-looking factors, including the following:

• The receipt of marketing approval from the FDA for Trokendi XR;

• The extent to which the FDA may require us to perform additional precommercial manufacturing activities for Oxtellar XR and Trokendi XR;

- The costs of our commercialization activities for Oxtellar XR and Trokendi XR if it receives final approval by the FDA;
- The cost of purchasing manufacturing and other capital equipment for our potential products;
- The cost and availability of active chemical ingredients and other manufacturing components required to supply a finished product;
- The scope, progress, results and costs of development for our product candidates;
- The cost, timing and outcome of regulatory review of our product candidates;
- The extent to which we acquire or invest in products, businesses and technologies;

• The extent to which we choose to establish collaboration, co-promotion, distribution or other similar agreements for product candidates; and

• The costs of preparing, submitting and prosecuting patent applications and maintaining, enforcing and defending intellectual property claims.

We anticipate we will need to obtain additional capital for the commercial launch of Trokendi XR, through equity offerings, debt financing and/or new or existing licensing and research collaboration agreements or any combination thereof. We expect that our progress in the development of our product candidates may provide sufficient value inflection milestones, based on which we may be able to seek additional funding. The type, timing, and terms of financing will depend upon our cash needs, the availability of financing sources and the prevailing conditions in the financial markets. There can be no assurance that such financing will be available to us at any given time or available on favorable terms, if at all. If sufficient funds on acceptable terms are not available when needed, we could be required to significantly reduce operating expenses and delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate one or more of our development programs, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, additional debt financing, if available, would result in increased fixed payment obligations and may involve agreements that include covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures or declaring dividends. Any debt financing or additional equity that we raise may contain terms, such as liquidation and other preferences that are not favorable to us or our stockholders. If we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it may be necessary to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, future revenue streams or product candidates or to grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth the major sources and uses of cash for the periods set forth below:

		Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 2012 (unaudited) (in thousands)		
Net cash (used in) provided by:				
Operating activities				
From continuing operations	\$	(30,068)	\$	(31,059)
From discontinued operations		2,141		
Investing activities				
From continuing operations	\$	8,471	\$	(39,613)
From discontinued operations				
Financing Activities				
From continuing operations	\$	14,296	\$	45,540
From discontinued operations		(2,096)		
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	\$	(7,256)	\$	(25,132)

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2011 increased by \$1.0 million. This change in cash flows from operating activities was primarily the result of an increase in loss of \$4.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 offset by increases of \$1.9 million between the two periods related to net changes in working capital and approximately \$1.1 million in non-cash items. The largest portion of the net changes in working capital related to a \$512,000 increase in cash reimbursements for tenant improvements, which are recorded as deferred rent in 2011, and \$3.1 million increase in account payables and accrued expense balances in 2012.

Investing Activities

Our investing activities from continuing operations are principally driven by cash provided by our financing activities and cash generated by operations, if any. We invest excess cash in accordance with our investment policy. Marketable securities consist of investments in U.S. Treasuries and various government agency debt securities, as well as investment grade securities in industrial and financial institutions which generally mature in twelve months or less. Fluctuations in investing activities between periods relate exclusively to the timing of marketable security purchases and the related sale and maturities of these securities.

Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2011 decreased by \$48 million. This decrease was primarily the result of using cash and cash equivalents received in our IPO to purchase marketable securities.

Financing Activities

Our net cash provided by financing activities from continuing operations was \$45.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to \$14.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011. This increase is due to the receipt of proceeds from our initial public offering of common stock in May 2012.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently have, nor have we ever had, any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of

facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or for other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we do not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve our capital to fund operations. We also seek to maximize income from our investments without assuming significant risk. Our exposure to market risk is confined to our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities. As of September 30, 2012, we had unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of \$62.5 million. We do not engage in any hedging activities against changes in interest rates. Because of the short-term maturities of our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, we do not believe that an increase in market rates would have any significant impact on the realized value of our investments. We do not have any foreign currency or other derivative financial instruments.

We contract with contract research organizations and investigational sites globally. We may be subject to fluctuations in foreign currency rates in connection with these agreements, primarily with respect to Euro denominated contracts. We do not hedge our foreign currency exchange rate risk. A hypothetical 10% appreciation in Euro exchange rates against the U.S. dollar from prevailing market rates would have increased our net loss by approximately \$494,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012. Conversely, a hypothetical 10% depreciation in Euro exchange rates against the U.S. dollar from prevailing market rates would have decreased our net loss by approximately \$494,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012. Conversely, a hypothetical 10% depreciation in Euro exchange rates against the U.S. dollar from prevailing market rates would have decreased our net loss by approximately \$494,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012. We do not believe that inflation and changing prices over the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2012 had a significant impact on our consolidated results of operations.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

We conducted an evaluation, and under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of September 30, 2012.

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time and in the ordinary course of business, we are subject to various claims, charges and litigation. For example, we may be required to file infringement claims against third parties for the infringement of our patents. Although the outcome of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty and some lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of unfavorably to us, we do not believe the outcome of any such litigation, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We are not currently involved in any material legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Supernus, a smaller reporting company, is not required to provide information required by this item.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a) Sales of Unregistered Securities.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, the Company granted options to an employee to purchase an aggregate of 95,000 shares of common stock at exercise price of \$12.92 per share. The options are exercisable for a period of ten years from the grant date. These issuances were exempt from registration in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act as transactions not involving any public offering.

(b) Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Common Stock.

On May 4, 2012, we closed our IPO in which 10 million shares of our common stock were sold at a price of \$5 per share, resulting in proceeds to the Company of \$45.5 million, net of expenses. Upon consummation of the IPO, the 49,000,000 outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock automatically converted to 12,249,998 shares of common stock.

On May 21, 2012, the underwriters of our IPO exercised the full amount of their over-allotment option. As a result, 449,250 shares of our common stock were sold at a price of \$5 per share, resulting in additional proceeds to the Company of \$2.1 million, net of expenses.

No offering costs were paid directly or indirectly to any of our directors or officers or persons owning ten percent or more of any class of our equity securities or to any other affiliates, other than payments in the ordinary course of business to officers for salaries and to non-employee directors as compensation for board or board committee service. There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our initial public offering as described in the Prospectus dated May 1, 2012 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None

Item 5. Other Information

None

Item 6. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed or furnished as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:

10.1 Offer Letter to Executive Officer.

10.2 Compensatory Arrangements with Executive Officers.

10.3 Compensatory Arrangements with Executive Officers.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Table of Contents

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

SUPERNUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

DATED: November 2, 2012

By: /s/ Jack A. Khattar Jack A. Khattar President and Chief Executive Officer

DATED: November 2, 2012

By: /s/ Gregory S. Patrick Gregory S. Patrick Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Table of Contents

Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

10.1	Offer Letter to Executive Officer.
10.2	Compensatory Arrangements with Executive Officers.
10.3	Compensatory Arrangements with Executive Officers.
31.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
32.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document